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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 November 2013

Note Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
8 $ $ [3
Revenue and other income
Premium revenue from insurance contracts 100,088,497 104,487,700 100,088,497 104,467,700
Less: Qutward reinsurance expenses (44,507,098)  (49,548,309) {44,507,098)  (49,548,308)
Neat premium revenue 55,581,309 54,819,361 55,581,399 54,919,391
Outward reinsurance commission inceme 8,075,000 5,932,238 8,075,000 5,932,238
Net investment income 4 4,020,017 11,967,148 4,002,024 11,945,111
Other income 5 131,044 14,973 15,363 14,973
Net operating income 67,807,460 72,833,750 67,673,786 72,811,713
Expenses
Claims expenses 44,319,966 47,419,711 44,319,966 47,419,711
Less: Reinsurance recovery (22,870,040)  (28,200,233) {22,870,040) (28,200,233)
Net claims expenses 6 21,449,926 19,219,478 21,445,928 19,219,478
Management and sales expenses 7 42,750,464 39,657,295 42,366,072 39,685,134
Movement in policyhalder liabilities 22 (13,685,010} 16,628,609 {13,655,010) 16,628,609
Net clalims and operating expenses 50,545,380 75,605,382 50,160,988 75,633,221
Incomel{loss) before taxation 17,262,080 {2,671,632) 17,512,798 (2,721,508)
Income tax (benefit) / expense 8(a) (B,305,108) 7,263,537 (6,307,339) 7,242,404
Incomel{loss) after taxation and total
comprehensive Incomef{loss) for the
year 3 23,567,189 (9,935,169) 23,820,137 {9,963,912)

The above financial statements should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes

pwe



AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 November 2013
Note Consolldated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
3 $ ] ]
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 26 16,278,123 18,060,568 18,572,547 18,358,308
Loans and receivables 9 11,552,050 12,221,698 11,912,372 12,202,784
Financlal assels & Fir value thraugh prefit or bss 1 161,583,883 158,526,248 164,583,983 159,626,248
Incom e tax asset 8@ 1,807,632 - 1,531,884 -
Assets anshg flom relnsurance contracts 22 2,852,417 - 2652417 -
Preperty, plant and equipment 12 419,466 587,965 373,582 585,627
Intengile assats 13 38,434,304 4,040,687 3,434,304 4,015,077
Deferred tax &sds 8(c) 4,062,438 2,346,371 4,082,438 2,3483M
Total Asscts 204,590,413 197,783,535 204,123,927 197,034,415
Liabilite s
Trade and other payables 15 13,914,626 8,021,341 13,872,686 7 971,598
Previsions 14 2,272,451 2,580,570 2272451 2,580,570
Other hsurance fzb lities 17 4,295.848 10,083,245 4,285,648 10,085,245
Other fhancial liabitities 19 147,384 206,649 172448 227918
Income tax payabl B{o) - 837,748 - 819,661
Liabiftles arising from reinsurance contracts 22 - 16,533,318 - 16,533 318
Defered lax fabillies B(s) 46, 190,483 50,781,781 46,190,483 50,781,781
Policyholda liablilies 22 21,788,334 18,315,821 21,799,334 16,315,621
Total Liabiliias 88,619,842 105,380,253 88,603,066 105,333,691
NetAssots 115,870,471 92,403,282 115,520,281 91,700,724
Represented by
Sharea capital 24 85,500 86,500 n -
Relzined eamings 25 363,110 £16,058 - -
Total Equity 449,610 702,558 - -
Head effice ascount 23 115,520,861 91,700,724 115,520,861 91,700,724
Total Equify and Head Office Aceount 115,970,471 92,403,282 115,520,861 91,700,724

k4

The Financial Stafements weré approved for issue by the Board on f 8 Wfﬁé 2014

Gordon Timmins Watson Garth Brian Jones
Director Director

The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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AlA Interpational Limited - New Zealand Branch

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AND HEAD OFFICE ACCOUNT

For the year ended 30 November 2013

Nate  Headoffice Share Retainzd Total
account capital eamings
Consolidated 3 $ $ $
Year ended 30 November 2013
At the beginning of year 81,700,724 86,500 616,058 92,403,282
Comprehensive income / (loss) for the year:

Income / (lass) for the year 23820137 - (252948) 23 567,188
Total comprehensive income/({loss) for the year 23,820,137 - (252,948) 23,567,189
At theend of year 115520851 86,500 363110 115970471
Year ended 30 November 2012
At the beginning of year 86,664,636 86,500 587,315 87,338,451
Comprehensive (loss )/ income for the year:

(Loss) / profit for the vear {9.863,912) - 28,743 {5.935.169)
Totalcoamprehensive ncome/{loss) for the year {2,963912) - 28,743 {,935,169)
New contributions 23 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
At the end of year 91,700,724 88500 616,058 02,403,282
Branch
Year ended 30 November 2013
At the beginning of year 91,700,724 - - 91,700,724
Compre hensive income for the year,

Profit for the year 23,820,137 - “ 23,820,137
Totatcomprehensive income for the year 23,620,137 - - 23,820,137
At the end of year 116,520,861 - - 115,520,861
Year ended 30 November 2012
At the beginning of year 86,664,636 - - 86,664,636
Comprehensive loss forthe year:

Loss for the year (9,863,812 - - (8,963812)
Total comprehensive boss for the year (9563912 - - (9.963,212)
New contributions 23 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
Atthe end of year 91,700,724 - - 91,700,724

NOTE: In the current reporting period the amaunt previously recognised in the Available for Sale Financial Assets
Reserve was transferred to the Head Office Account impacting the 2012 financial year. The total amount transferred
to the Head Office Account was $5,973,581 consisting of $4,464,347 transferred to the opening Head Office Account
and $1,508,234 via the profit for the pericd. Refer note 33 for details.

The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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AlA Infernational Limited - New Zealand Branch

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 November 2013

Note Consoidated Branch
013 2012 2013 2012
$ $ $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premiums receied 98,493,054 104,875,906 49493, 104,875,906
[rierest recehed 11,095803 6,990,363 11077 811 6,988,326
Other income received 131,044 15,415 15,363 15,115
Reinsurancerecoveries 23,015404 31,133,514 23015404 31,733,514
Reimsurance paid (30,828443) (46,269,024) (30829,443) {46,280,024)
Policy loan advancements {120519) {513,73) (120,519) (513,793)
Repayment of policy bans 78012 - 18,012 -
Payments tosuppliers and employees {40,405845) {40,401,478) {40339,102) (40,420,208)
Paymanis topolicyhoders (49,862527) {(49,621,716) (49862,527) (49,821,711
Income 12 paid (2,388,633) {1,251,5%8) (2351,544) {1,25,733)
Natcash provided by cperating activities 28 10,126,250 5,557,348 10,677,409 5,542,385
GASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Proceeds from sales ! matusity of financiat assets 18,372,724 12,486,177 1837274 12,466,177
Acquisition of foed intres securities (27695213} (43,974,690) (27,695,213 (43,974,690)
Purchase of property, planl and equipment {188,088) (338,662) (152,163) {338,662)
Aequisifion of ntangible assets {388,118) {2,088,129) (358,118) {2,008,129)
Net cash used ininvesting activities (9,508,685} (33,945,304} (4862,770) {33,945,304)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIMTIES
Headoffiee cortritulicns - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
Netcash provided hy financing activities - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
NatIncraase / {d ecrease) in cash and cash equivdents 217,555 (13,387,955} 214,68 (13,402,919}
Cash and ¢ashequivalents & the beginning of the year 19,060568 244858 1 &35&3{5 31,781,227
Cash and cash equivdents at e end of the year 26 19,275123 19,064,568 18572,947 18,358,308

The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION '

AlA Internaticnal Limited-New Zealand Branch (the Branch or AlA NZ) trading as AIA New Zealand, is a branch of AlA
international Limited. The Branch reports to its Group Office (AlA Group) in Hong Kong and predominantly provides a
range of iife insurance products in New Zealand. The financial statements are far AIA NZ and its subsidiary together
referred to as NZ Group or the consolidated entity.

For the purposes of complying with Generally Accepled Accounting Practice in New Zealand {NZ GAAP), AlA
Intemational Limited-New Zealand Branch is a profit oriented entity, AIA International Limited is an overseas company
registered under the Companies Act 1993,

AlA International Limited changed its legal name from American International Assurance Company {Bermuda) Limited
to AlA International Limited on the 1 March 2013.

Its registered office is at:

The AlA Building, Level 15,
5-7 Byron Avenue,
Takapuna, Auckland,

New Zealand

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 1‘3 Hﬁ}f’oé 2014,
W -
The directors do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These palicies
have been applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

This financlal report has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). The financial statements comply with the Financial Reporting Act 1953 and the
Companies Act 1983. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions
or other events is reported.

This financial report is prepared in accordance with the fair value basis of accounting with certain exceptions as
described in the accounting policies below and the functional and presentation currency is New Zeatand dollars (NZD)
rounded fo the nearest dollar.

New and amended standards adopted by the NZ Group

FRS 44 'Hamonisation Amendments' New Zealand Specific Disclosure FRS 44 sets out New Zealand specific
disclosures for entities that apply NZ IFRS. The Harmonisation Amendments amend various standards for the
purpose of harmonising with the source IFRS and Australian Accounting Standards. The significant, relevant
amendments include the intreduction of the option to use the indirect method of reporting cash flows that is not
currenily in NZ[AS 7, In addition, various disclosure reguirements have been deleted.

pwe



AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Amendment to NZ IAS 1, 'Finandial Statements Presentation”. requires entities to group items presented in "Other
Comprehensive Incomes’ on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). There is ne significant impact of this standard on the Branch.

Accounting standards approved but not yet effective

The Branch and consolidated entity have chosen not to early adopt the following standards and amendments that
were issued but not yet effective for accounting the year ended 30 November 2013, Initial application of these
standards and interpretations, except for IFRS 9, is not expected to have a material impact to the financial report of
the Branch and consclidated entity. IFRS 9 will impact the Branch and consolidated entity as it replaces the current
classification and measurement models for financial assets.

NZ IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (effective from 1 January 2017): addresses classification and measurement of
financial assets and liabilities is available for early adoption immediately. NZ IFRS 9 replaces the multiple
classification and measurement models in IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' with a single
model that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value. The consclidated entity is assessing
the impact of NZ IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ on its financial statements.

NZ IFRS 13 *Fair Value Measurement’ (effective from 1 January 2013); guldance contained in individual IFRS is
replaced with a single, unified definition of fair value; i alse cerdains authoritative guidance on the application of fair
value measurement in inactive markets. There are likely to be significant additional disclosures where fair values are
used.

NZ IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements' (effective from 1 January 2013) - Replacement of IAS 27 ‘Separate
Financial Statements” the new standard changes the definition of control so that it now focuses on the need 1o have
both power and variable returns before control is present. This standard is not expected to have a significant impact
on the financial statements of the consalidated entity.

Amendments to NZ IFRS 32 'Financial Instruments: Presentation’ (effective from 1 January 2014): clarifications made
to current netting requirements around simultanecus settlement. Additional disclosure requirements have been
introduced.

NZ IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’ (effective from 1 January 2013): includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interest in other entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and ather off balance sheet vehicles. Tha adoption of this standard is not expected to have any significant
impact on AlA NZ.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of AlA Financial Services Netwark Limiled
(AlA FSN) and AIA International Holdings {(New Zealand) Limited {AIA Holdings), controlled entities of the Branch as
at 30 November 2013 and the results of AIA FSN and AlA Holdings for the year then ended. AlA FSN is invalved in
the activity of insurance broking and AlA Holdings is a holding company. All transactions and balances between these
entities have been eliminated.

A subsidiary is an entity over which the consdlidated entity has control, being the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying and shareholding of more than one half of the voling rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the consolidated entity controls another entity.

2.3 Principles Underlying the Conduct of Insurance Business

The insurance operations of the Branch comprise the selling and administration of contracts which are classified as
either insurance contracts or investment contracts.

pwe



AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED}

Insurance contracts

An insurance confract is defined as a contract under which one party (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholder} by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event
(insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

Insurance condracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as significant if, and
only i, an insured event could causs an insurer {o pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding
scenarios that lack commercial substance (i.e. have no discernible effect on the economics of the transaction).
Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on the occurrence of a specified avent such as
death, injury or disahility caused by accident or illness. The insured benefit is either not linked or only partly linked to
the market value of the investment held by the insurer, and the financial risks are substantially borne by the insurer.

Investment confracts

Any producis sold by the Branch that do not meet the definition of an insurance coniract are classified as investment
contracts.

Investment contracts include investment-inked contracts where the benefit amount is directly linked to the market
value of the investments held. While the underlying assets are registered in the name of the insurer and the
invesiment-linked policyholder has no direct access to the specific assets, the contraciual arrangements are such that
the investment-tinked policyholder bears ihe risks and rewards of the investment performance. The insurer derives fee
income from the administration of investment contracts.

2.4 Specific Accounting Policies
a) Premium revenue
Insurance contracts

Premium revenue comprises the insurance component of premium receipts from customers. Premiums relating to
insurance confracts are recognised as premium income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Premiums are recognised as income when due from policyhelders, Unpald premiums are only recognised during the
days of grace (a period of ime during which a payment of the insurance premium is expected to be received) or
where secured by the surrender value of the policy and are included as “receivables” in the Statement of Financial
Position.

investment contracts

Premium receipts are of a2 deposit nature and are recognised directly in policyholder liahilifes. Premiums for
investment contracts are recognised on a cash basis.

b} Reinsurance expenses and recoveries

As the reinsurance agreements result in significant transfer of risk between the Branch and its reinsurers, reinsurance
income and expenses are recognised separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Reinsurance premiums are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of reinsurance expenses
when they become due and payable. The premiums are recognised on an accrual basis over the term of the
asscciated reinsurance contract,

Reinsurance commissions are recognised in the Stalement of Camprehensive Income &s part of reinsurance income
when they become due and payable. Income is recognised in the period in which it is earned.

Reinsurance commissions are recognised net of any commissions payable to the reinsurer as a result of policy
discontinuances.

pwe



AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NCVEMBER 2013

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

Reinsurance recovesies on claims are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of net claims
expense. Reinsurance recoveries are recognised at the time the claim event is notified to the Branch if the underlying
policy is relnsured.

¢} Investment income

Dividends are recognised as revenue when right to receive the dividend is established. Interest income is recognised
on an effective interest basis. All other investment revenue is recognised on an accrual basis.

d} Fee and other income

Fee and other income are recognised in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.
e) Claims expenses

Insurance confracls

Claims expenses comprise the expense component of claims payments to customers and relates o insurance
coniracts.

Claims are recognised when the liability fo the policy owner under the policy contract has been established. Claims in
respect of policies remaining in force at balance date are included in policyholder liabiliies.

Maturity claims are recognised on the policy maturity date. Surrenders are recognised when paid. Death and all other
claims are recognised when the liabifity to the policyholder under the policy contract has been established.
Provision has been made for the estimated cost of all claims notified but not settled at halance date.

Investment contracis

Investment contracts are akin to deposits. Surrender or benefit payments in the context of an investment contract are
recognised as a change in policyholder liabilities.

f) Policy acquisition expenses

Policy acquisition costs comprise the costs of acguiring new business (commissions). They do not include the general
growth and development costs incurred by the Branch and consolidated entity. Acquisition costs are initially recorded
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, with any amounts to be deferred then taken fo the Statement of Finandial
Position as deferred acquisition cost {DAC) within policyholder liabiities (refer to note 2.4v). These are then
amortised over the period in which they will be recoverable.

For the purpose of determining policyholder liabilities, expenses involved in running the Branch’s business are
categorised into acquisition, investment management and maintenance costs on the basis of a detailed functional
analysis of activities carried out by the Branch.

g) Poilcy maintenance expenses

Maintenance costs are fixed and variable costs of administering policies subsequent to sale (from the second year of
the policy onwards) and maintaining the Branch and consolidated entity's operations such that they are sufficient to
service in force policies. Maintenance cosis comprise renewal commissions. These expenses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

b} Investment management expenses

Investment management expenses are fixed and variable costs of managing investment funds. These costs are
recagnised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

pwc



AlA Internatlonal Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

i} Employee benefits

The employee benefits are recognised on the accrual basis for services rendered up to the balance date. These
include salaries, wages, bonuses, annual leave, long service leave and pension obligations.

Liabilities arising in respect of employee entitlements expected to be setiled within 12 months ¢f the reporfing date are
measured at their nominal amounts. All other employee entilements are measlired as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporiing date, Consideration is
given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employees, departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on New Zealand government
bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash fows.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

[} Other expenses

Other expenses which are not related to the above categories or to amoriisation and depreciation {refer to note 2p
Property, Plant and Equipment and 2q Intangible Assets) are recognised on an accrual basis and included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as Gther Expenses.

k) Taxation
Current fax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recaverable in respect of the taxable
profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) o the extent
that it is unpaid {or refundable}.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liahility methad in respect of temporary differences arising from differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base of
those items.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences af the fax rates expected to apply when
the assets are recovered or liabifities seftled, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the time.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised.

income tax for life insurance contracts business

Life insurance contracts are subject to a special tax regime. The current life insurance tax regime recognises two
separate bases. Shareholder base and policyholder base would tax shareholder income and policyholder income
respectively, Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income reflects tax imposad on
shareholders as well as policyholders.

Shareholder base tax iosses would be available to be utilised within the Branch and Consolidated Entity in New
Zealand and/or for future income tax obligations. Policyholder base tax losses would only be available to meet future
policyhelder base tax obligations,

Income tax for other business

Income tax expense for all other business is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period, based on the
income tax rate at the time and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and unused tax losses.

pwec



AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINLIED)

Goods and services fax

All revenues, expenses are recognised net of goods and services taxes (GST) except where the GST is not
recoverable. In these circumstances the GST is included as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables are
reported inclusive of GST. The net GST payable to or recoverable from the tax authorities as at balance daie is
included as payable or receivable in the Statement of Financial Position. Statements of Cash Flows have been
prepared on a GST exclusive hasis.

B} Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
fo the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a siraight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases in which the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.

m)} Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars which is the functional and presentation
currency of the NZ Group, rounded to the nearest doliar.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are initially translated into New Zealand dollars at the rate of exchange at the date of
the transaction, At balance date amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies are transiated to New Zealand
dollars at rates of exchange current at that date. Resulting exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

n)} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions, ather short term,
highly liguid investments with maturities at acquisition of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within trade and other payables on ihe Statement of Financial Position, if applicable.

o) Flnancial instruments
Financial assets

The Branch and consolidated entity classify their investments info the following categories: loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets depends on their nature and
purpose and it is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables: are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market other than those that the Branch and consolidated entity intend to sell in the short term or that it
has designated as available for sale. Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair valus and subsequently
measured al amertised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assels that either held for trading or designated on initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financtal
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-temn, required {o back
polieyholder liabilities or if so designated by management. Designation by management takes place when if is
necessary to eliminate or significanfly reduce measurement or recognition incensistencies or if related financial assels
or liabiliies are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis.
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months, otherwise they are
classified as non-current.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date en which the
consolidated entity commits to the transactions. Financial assets cariied at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value. Transaction costs related o the purchase of these assets are expensed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when incurred.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to received cash flows from the invesiments have expired or have
been transferred and all risk and rewards of ownership have been substantially transferred.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair valus of the financial assets through profit or loss category are presented in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income within Net Investment Income in the pericd in which they arise.

Financial liabifties

Financial ljabiiities are classified as eitier at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or at amortised cost. A finandial
liability is classified as FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- Ithas been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

- Itis part of an identified porifolio of financial instruments that the Branch manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- ltis aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if

- Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- It forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Branch's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internelly on that basia;
ar

- It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NZ I1AS 39 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' permits the entire combined contract (asset or fability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Firancial lizbiliies are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest methed.

p} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost including transaction costs and subsequently measured at
cost less any subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight Hine basis to
write off the net cost of the property, plant and equipment over their expected useful lives. Estimates of remaining
useful lives are made on a regular basis. The depreciation rates are as follow:

Furniture, fitting and office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 33.33%

11
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AlA Infernational Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

q) Infangible assefs
Software development costs

Software development is recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impaiment. Software development
costs are capitalised where it is expected that future economic benefit will be derived and are amoriised either over a
period not exceeding 5 years or assessed useful life using the straight line basis method. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

Purchased compuler software

Application software purchased is recorded at cost less accumulated ameortisation and impairment. Amortisation is
charged on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the software not exceeding 5 years.

Customer based assels

Costs incurred in acquiring customers from other insurance brokers are recorded as a customer base intangible
asset. The cusiomer bases are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of expected benefit. The period has
been assessed at 5 years for insurance broker customer bases. These useful lives are reviewed annually with
reference to the persistency rate of the customer base. The carrying value of the customer base is reviewed annually
and impaired where it is considered necessary. The carrying values are reviewed with reference to the expected
future cash flows from these customers. The expected future cash fiows are produced via a projected renewal report
on the customer base.

r} |Impairment of assets
impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on a regular basis. A financial asset is impaired if its carrying value
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount and there is objective evidence of impairment to the financial asset.

The Branch and consolidated entity assess at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impaitment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impaiment as a result of one or more events that have
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event') and that loss event {or evenis) has an impact on the
estimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impaiment may include indication that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty; a breach of contract, such as a default or delingquency in payments; the probability that the issuer or
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficuities; and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flow from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assels in that group.

For the leans and receivables category the ameount of the loan or receivable is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount is reduced via an aliowance account against which an uncollectible trade receivable is written
off.

If. in & subsequent periad, the amount of the impaiment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Branch and consolidated enfity first assess whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant. If the Branch determines that no objestive evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impainment and for which an impairment loss is or continues 1o be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impaiment.

Impairmant of nen financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite usefut life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment annually. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may net be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 1he asset's net selling price and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

Nen financial assets that suffered an impaimment are reviewed for possible reversal of impaimment at each reporting
date.

5) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been provided to the branch and
consolidated entity in the ardinary course of business and are recognised when the Branch and consolidated entity
become obliged to make future payments resulting fom the purchase of goods and services.

Trade payables are recognised initfally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

t) Provisions

A provision is reccgnised when the branch and consolidated entity have a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setite the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the
present obligation at the balance date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market
assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due fo the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

u} Other insurance liabilities

Other insurance liabilities are recognised on an aecrual basis. Outstanding claims and premiums received in advance
liabilifies are measured at fair value net of transacfion costs, Other provisions have been recognised on the basis of
actuarial methods with due regard to relevant actuarial principles.

v} Policyholder liabilities

Policyholder liabilities for insurance contracts are computed using stafistical or mathematical methods, which are
expected to give approximately the same results as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract, The
computations are made by an extemal and independent actuary (refer ta note 21) who prepared the reports for the
Branch, on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant aciuarial principles. The
methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the parficular classes of insurance business written.
Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) are connected with the measurement basis of insurance labllities and are equally
sensitive to the factors that are constdered in the liability measurement. These costs relate to all costs incurred on the
acquisition of insurance contracts and is recognised to the extent that it is recoverable through future margins on
confracts. The deferred amounts are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a reduction in policyholder
liabilities and amortised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected duration of ihe relevant
insurance contracts.




AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Policyholder liabilities consist of insurance contract liabilities and investment contract liabilities.

Policyholder liabilities are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of amounts
that will be recoverable from reinsurers based on gross provisions.

Insurance confracts

Policyholder liabilities relating to insurance contracts are measured using the Margin On Services (MoS)
Methodology. Under this methodology the net present value of future receipts from and payments to policyholders and
planned profit margin is calculated cn the basis of best estimate assumptions using a risk-free discount rafe. Profit
margins are released over the lifetime of the contract in @ manner that reflects the pattern of services provided.

For actuarial methods and assumptions refer to note 21.
investment contracts

Policyhelder liabilities relating to the investment contracts are recognised and subsequently measured at fair value
with any change in value being recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

w} Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

Assets arising from reinsurance coniracts are also computed using the above methods. In addition, the recoverability
of these assets is assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that the balance is reflective of the amounts that will
ulfimately be received, taking into consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk. Impaimment is recognised
where there is objective evidence that the Branch may not receive amounts due o it and these amounts can be
reliably measured,

x) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value. The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the #fem being hedged. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in an aclive market, including recent market transactions, and
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and optiens pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets wihen fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the trangaction price {i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparisen with other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument {i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on
a valuation technique whose variables include only data from cbservable markets.

y) Liability adequacy test

Policyholder liabilities are tested for liability adequacy by comparing themt to the current estimate of future cash flows.
Liabilities are grouped according to major product groups and each group is tesled against the current estimate of
future cash flows. If the liability of a related product group is less than current estimate, the liability is increased with
the expense being bocked directly through the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Z) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or where

the Branch and consolidated entity have transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, i.e. when the obligation is discharged or cancelled.
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
aa) Statements of cash ffows

Far the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flews, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and
investment in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafis. The following terms are used in the
Statement of Cash Flows:

Operating aclivifies: are the prindipal revenue producing activities of the Branch and consolidated entity and other
activities that are not investing or financing activities.

Investing activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-tenm assets and other investments not included in cash
equivalents.

Financing activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and head
office account and borrowings of the entity.

bb} Ordinary share capital

Qrdinary share capital issued by the Consolidated Entity is classified as equity and recognised at fair value less direct
issue costs.

ce} Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with the current
year.

dd) Critical accounting judgments and estimates

In the application of NZ IFRS, management is required fo make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying values of assets and liabilifes that are not readlly apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumnptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reascnable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments, Actual results may
differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed onh an ongoing basis, Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects hoth current and future periods.

The key areas where critical accounting estimates are applied are noted helow.,
Policyholder Liabilities

Policyholder liabilities for insurance contracts are computed using statistical or mathematical methods, which are
expected fo result in approximately the same values as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract, The
assessments and computations are made by suitably qualified personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial
methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles.

The methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the particutar classes of insurance business written.
Deferred acquisition costs policy are connected with the measurement basis of insurance liabilities and are egually
sensitive to the factors that are considered in the liability measurement.

The following are the key factors that impact estimalion of the liabilities:

- the cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance contracts;

- mortality and morbidity experience on life insurance products, including enhancements to policyholder
benefits;

- discontinuance experience, which affecis the Consolidated Entity’s ability to recover the cost of asquiring
naw business over the lives of the contracts: and

- the amounts credited to policyholders' accounts compared to the retums on invested assets through asset-
liability management and sirategic and tactical asset allocation.

15
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AlA International Limited ~ New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)}

Other factors including regulation, interest rates, taxes, securities market movements factors, competition and general
economic conditions affect the level of these liabilities. Refer to note 21 for details of specific actuarial policies and
methods.

Assels arising from reinsurance contracts

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also determined using the above methods. Additionally, the
recoverability of these assets Is assessed on a perfodic basis to ensure that the balance is reflective of the amounts
that will ultimately be received, taking into consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk. Impaimment is
recognised where there is objective evidence that the Branch and Consalidated Entity may not receive amounts due
to it and these amounts can be reliably measured.

Taxation

Judgment is required in deterrnining the Branch's provisicn for income taxes. Thete are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate fax determination is uncertain. The Branch recognises liabilities for anficipated tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

2.5 Employee Benefits

Share based compensation

AIA Group Limited {AIAGL) operates a number of share-based compensation plans, under which the Branch and
consolidated entity receives services from the employees, directors and officers as consideration for the shares and/for
options of AIAGL. These share-based compensation plans comprise the Share Option Scheme (SO Scheme), the
Restricted Share Unit Scheme (RSU Scheme) and the Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP),

The share compensation plans of AIAGL and its subsidiaries ("AIA Groug') offered to the Branch and consolidated
entity's employees are equity-settled plans. Under equity-settiled share-based compensation plan, the fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of AIAGL's shares and/or options s recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the vesting period with a corresponding amount recorded in equity.
Any amounts recharged from AIAGL related to equity-settled share-based payment arrangements are offset against
the amount recorded in the Head Office Account.

The total amount fo be expensed over the vesting peried is determined by reference fo the fair value of the share
andfor opfions granted. Non-market vesting conditions are inciuded in assumptions about the number of shares
and/or options that are expected to be vested. At each period end, the Branch and consolidated entity revises its
estimates of the number of shares andfor options that are expected to be vested. Any impact of the revision fo
original estimates is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income with a corresponding adjustment to Head
Office account. Where awards of share-based payment arrangements have graded vesting terms, each tranche is
recagnised as a separate award, and therefore the fair value of each tranche is recognised over the applicable vesting
peried,

The Branch and consolidated entity estimates the fair value of options using a binomial lattice model. This model
requires inputs such as share price, implied volatility, risk free interest rate, expected dividend rate and the expected
life of the option.

Where modification or cancellation of an equity-settled share-based compensation plan occurs, the grant date fair

value confinues to be recognised, together wilth any incremental value arising on the date of modification if non-
market conditions are met. Refer fo note 16 for the details of share based compensation.
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AlA International Limited -~ New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

3. UNDERLYING PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR

Underlying profit after tax is presented to facilitate comparison of the consolidated entity's and the Branch’s profit for
the reported financial years. It shows an underlying financial result of the business before the impact of the mavement
in the discount rate during the year.

The movement in the discount rate arose from the change in the risk-frea rate applied in valuing life insurance policy
liabilities. The increaze in the risk-free rate during the 2013 financial year generated a gain of $21,002,857 (2012: [oss
of $12,811,526). When adjusted for this mevement the underlying result of the consalidated entity and the Branch was
a profit of $2,564,232 and $2,817,180, respectively in 2013 (2012: $2,876,357 and $2,847,514).

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ ] $ $
Profit/(loss) after taxation 23,567,189 {9,935,169) 23,820,137 (2,963,912)
Less: '
Discount rate effect before tax 10,828,825 (8,977,434) 10,828,825 (8.977,434)
Insomsea tax on discount rate effect 10,174,132 {3,834,092) 10,174,132 (3,834,092)
Discount rate effect after tax 21,002,957 (12.811,526) 21,002,957 {12,811,526)
Underlying profit after tax 2,664,232 2,876,357 2,817,180 2,847,614
Components of underlying profi¢
Insurance contractse
Planned margins of revenues over expenses 4,135,073 126,572 4,135,073 128,572
Difference between actual and assumed
experlence (2,755,647} (804,988) {2,755,647) (604,988)
Change In valuation assumptions (other than
discount rate) (106,083} - (106,083) -
1,273,343 (478,4186) 1,273,343 {478,418)
Investinent contracts
Difference hefween actual and assumed
experience 13,048 {328,078) 13,048 (328,076)
13,048 (320,07G) 13,048 (328,078}
Investment earnings on assels in excess of
policyholder liabilities 1,530,788 3,654,106 1,530,789 3,654,106
Other (252,848) 28,743 - -
1.277.841 3,682,849 1,530,789 3,654,106
Total underlying profit after tax 2,564,232 2,876,357 2,817,180 2,847,614

The disclosure of the components of profil or loss after taxation are required to be separated between policyholders’
and shareholder's interests. In the case of the Branch and consolidated enfity, all profit or loss after taxation is
attributable to the head office.

4, NETINVESTMENT INCOME

Investment gains
Fixed interest securities:

- Debt securities interest and other income 10,247,085 8,635,357 10,247,085 B,635 357

- Debt securities realised (loss)/gain on sale (42,705) 1,740 (42,705) 1,740

- Debt securilies unrealised (loss)/gain {6,674,108) 2,298,065 {6,674,108) 2,208,085

Cash and cash equivalents interest 420,082 906,661 402,089 974,624

Loans interest 68,663 35,325 69,6683 38,325

Total net investment income 4,020,017 11,967,148 4,002,024 11,945,111
17
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NCVEMBER 2013

5. OTHERINCOME

Consolidated Branch

2013 2012 2013 2012

§ $ s B
Sundry 131,044 14,873 15,363 14,973
Total other income 131,044 14,973 15,363 14,973

6. NET CLAIMS EXPENSE

Claims 34,119,431 40,945,973 34,119,431 40,845973
Surrenders 10,200,535 8,473,738 10.200,535 6,473,738
Insurance clalms recognised as expense 44,319,966 47,418,711 44,319,866 47,419,711
Less: Reinsurance recoveries (22,870,040} {28,200,233) (22,870,040 {28,200,233)
Net claims expense 21,448,926 19,218,478 21,449,926 19,218,478

During the year the claims expense provision recognised in 2011 was transferred to policyholder liabilities reducing
the current year's claims expenses by $4,100,000. Refer to note 17 for more details.

7. MANAGEMENT AND SALES EXPENSES

Policy acquisition and maintenance expenses

Policy acquisition expenses- commission 11,466,382 9,330,153 11,534,387 9,589,875
Policy maintenance expenses- commiission 5612341 5,592,570 5,612,341 5,602,570
Total policy expenses 17,078,733 14,922,723 17,146,728 15,182,445

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and other short termn benefits 13,803,051 12,122,154 13,714,844 12122 154
Post-employment benefits 348,132 306,463 347,732 306 463
Other long-term benefits 538,224 423,950 538,224 423 950
Total employee benefitexpenses 14,690,407 12,852,567 14,600,800 12,852 567

Depreciation and amortis ation expense

Depredaticn of property, ptant and equipment 235,006 239,991 232,627 239,164
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,062,727 575,840 1,037,117 550,238
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 1,297,733 815,831 1,269,744 789,403




AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

7. MANAGEMENT AND SALES EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Other expenses

Investment management expenses

Qperating leases

Audit fees

Other non assurance services paid to auditors
Donations

Group service fees

Sales and marketing re afed
Data processing

Professional fees (excluding paid to auditors)
Medical admin(strative expenses
Nan-recoverable GST

Other administrative expenses
Total other expenses

Total management and sales axpenses

8. TAXATION

{2) Income tax expense

Current tax exponae
Current taxation

Peferred tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Income tax expense

The income tax expense recognised can be recondled tothe accounting profit as follows:

Total profit{loss) before taxation

Incormea tax at the curmrent rate of 28%
{2012:28%)

Taxation effect of non-deductible expenses/non-assessable revenue

Permanent differences
Deferred tax previously not recognised

Income tax expense

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
B § $ 3

359,771 128,747 359,771 128,747
817,885 710,665 672,760 710,665
136,378 132,913 129,150 125,685
2,100 10,000 2,100 10,000
- 3,750 - 3,750
662,705 1,214,765 662,705 1,214,765
1,008,606 2,176,825 858,161 2,176,825
1,629,900 1,366,080 1,595875 1,366,080
1,371,481 890,464 1,353,825 899,464
820,797 1,348,889 820,797 1,348,889
(11,279) 794,969 (27,440) 794,969
2,887,137 2,279,107 2,820,956 2,080,880
9,683,591 11,066,174 9,348,800 10,860,719
42,750,464 39,657,295 42,366,072 39,685134

- 638,872 - 617,739

(6,305,109 6,624 654 (6,307.339) 8.624 664

{6,305,109) 7.263,537 (6,307,339} 7,242.404
17,262,080 (2,671,632) 17.512,798 {2,721,508)
4,833,382 {748,057) 4,903,583 (762,022)

(11,4956,331) 8,014,259 (11,568,762) 8,007,021
357,840 (2,665) 357,840 (2.665)

{6,305,109) 7,263,537 (6,307,339) 7,242404
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

{b) Income tax assatf{payable)}

Opening halance
Provisicnal tax paid
Current year charge
Closing halance

Currant income tax payable
Nan-current income tax asset/(payable)
Total income tax asset/{payable}

{c} Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2013

Movements in deferred {ax
Provisions and accruals

Polcyholder labiities

Unused taxlosses

Total net deferred tax asset/iability

2012

Movements in deferred tax
Frovieions and accruals

Pokcy holder liahilties

Other

Total net deferred tax assetliability

Analysed as
Deferred fax assef
Provislons and accruals
Unused tax losses
Total deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liabiity

Policy holder ltabilities
Net deferred tax liability

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
[ § L) 3
(B37,748) (1,450,414) (819,661) (1,427,655)
2,445,380 1,251,538 2,351,545 1,225,733
- (638,872) - (517,739)
1,607,632 (837,748) 1,631,884 (819,661)
- (635,826) - (617,739)
1,607,632 {201,923) 1,531,884 (201,922}
1,607,632 (837.748) 1,531,884 (819,661)

Branch and Consolidated

Opening Balance (Chargedy credited

Closing Balance

al1 Decenmher ta profit or loss at 30 Navember
$ $ $

2,348,371 (1,151,847) 1,184,524
(50,781,761) 4591272 (46,190,488)

- 2867914 2,867,914

(48,435,390} 6,307,339 (42,128,05%)

2,350,672 (4,301) 2,346,371
(44,158,731) (6,623,030) (50,781,761)

(2.657) 2,667 -
(41,810,726) {6,624,664) {48,435,390)
Congaofidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
% 3 $ $
1,194,524 2,346,371 1,194 524 2,346,371
2,867,914 - 2 867,914 -

4,062,438 2,346,371 4,062,438 2,346,371

(46,190489)  (50,781,761) (46,190,489)  (50,781,761)

(42,128,051)  {48,435,390) {42,128,051)  {48,435,390)
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax on policyholder liabilities

Policyholder liabilifies represent the net present value of estimated future cash flows and planned profit margins.
Using the margin on services methodology, planned after tax profit marging are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the period services are provided to poficyholders. A deferred tax liability of $46,190,489
(2012 $50,781,761) has been separately disclosed and incduded in the deferred tax liabilitles balance representing
taxable temporary differences which are implicitly embedded within palicyholder liabilities.

Deferred Tax Utilisation Consolidated
2013 2012
$ $
Expected to be utllised within 12 months 4,062,438 2,346,371
Expacted to seftled within mare than 12 months (46,190,489) {50,781,761)
(42,128,051) (48,435,350)

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
% F 3 $

Receivables from palicyhclders . 1,746,125 1,353,638 1,746,125 1,353,638
Loans raceivable 385,961 843,454 885,951 843,454
Impairment provision {36,583) (23,993) (36.583) {23,993)
Loans to and receivables from policyholders 2,595,503 2,173,009 2,595,503 2,173,099
Due from brakers and intermediaries 1,482,712 1,653,769 1,479,854 1,663,769
[mpairment provision (1,361,626) {1,067,570) (1,361,628) (1,067,570)
Receivables from brokers and intermediaries 121,086 586,199 118,228 586,199
Reinsurance recoveties 8,152,950 6,298,313 6,152,950 6,298,313
Recaivables from reinsurers 6,152,350 6,298,313 6,152,950 6,298,313
Amounts receivable from related parties
AlA Financial Services Network - - aA70,447 -
Receivables from related parties - - 370,447 -
Accrued interest 2,459,245 2,250,203 2,469,245 2,280,203
Prepayments 158,433 189,841 140,100 180,929
Sundry debtors 54,833 684,041 55,899 684,041
Prepayments and other receivables 2,682,511 3,164,085 2,675,244 3,145173
Total loans and receivables 11,552,050 12,221,698 11,912,372 12,202,784
Analysed as .

Current 10,666,089 11,378,242 11,026,411 11,359,330

Mon current 885,961 843,454 885,961 843,454

1,552,050 12,221,696 11,912,372 12,202,734

Included in loans and receivables balanca are debtors with a carrying amount of $1,287,825 (2012 $2,180,308) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Branch and consolidated entity have not provided as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considersd recoverable.
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AlA Infernational Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Consalidated Branch
2019 2012 2013 2012
$ $ $ 3

Ageing past due receivables

130 days 570,981 1,474,534 570,981 1,474,534
31-80 days 490,432 377,048 480,432 377,048
91-365 days 226,412 263,230 228,412 263,230
Over 1 year - 65,493 - 65,493
Total 1,287,825 2,180,306 1,287,825 2,180,306

Provision for impalrment of recelvables from brokers and Intermediaries

At beglnning of the year {1,067,570) {821,283) (1,067,570} {B821,283)
Additional provisions (294,056)  (3,070,548) (204,056)  (3,070,548)
Uzed during the year - 2,824,267 - 2,824,261
At the end of the year {1,381,828) (1,067,570} {1,361,626)  {1,067,570)
Analysed as:

Current (1,361,628) (1,067,570} {1,361,626)  (1,067,570)

10. INVESTMENT IN FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

AlA International Limited (formerdy American Intemational Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited) has an interest in
the following subsidiaries:

Principle Activity Percentage Held
2013 2012
AlA Finaneial Services Network Limited Insurance Brokerage 100% 100%
AlA International Holdings {New Zedland) Limitad Holding Campany 100% -

The investment in AIA Financial Services Network Limited has been writien off as the net market value of the
investment in the subsidiary is nil.

AIA International Holdings (New Zealand) Limited was incorporated on 20 May 2013,

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITOR LOSS

Consclidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ $ $ $
Debt securities
Annuity bonds 4,518,222 5,604,143 4,518,222 5,604,143
Medium term notes 148,895,657 145,430,256 148,995,657 145,430,256
New Zealand govemment securities 8,070,104 8,491,848 8,070,104 8,481,849
Total financial assets through profit or loss 161,583,983 159,526,248 161,583,983 159,526,248
Analysed as:
Current 24,405,466 10,852 205 24,405,466 10,852,206
Non current 137,178,517 148,674,042 137,178,517 148,674,042
161,583,983 159,526,248 164,583,985 159,526,243
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AlA Internafional Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCGIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
8 $ 8 $
Furniture, fittings and offlce equipment
Cost
At beginning of the vear 1,802,823 1,465,771 1,592,711 1,458 658
Additions 133,315 137,841 101,657 137,941
Disposals - {889) - (889)
At end of the year 1,736,138 1,602,823 1,694,368 1,582,711
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of the year {1,417,220) (1,297,435) (1,409,446) {1,280,488)
Depreclation charge (81,460) {120,674) (79,081) {119,847}
Disposals - 889 - 889
At end of the year {1,498,680) (1,417,220) (1,488,527) {1,409,446)
Closing net hook value 237,458 185,603 205,841 183,265
Computer equipment
Cost
At beginning of the year 1,416,608 1,297,111 1,409,108 1,289,811
Additions B4,773 200,721 50,506 200,721
Disposals {152,020) (81,224) (152,020) {81,224)
At end of the year 1,329,361 1,416,608 1,307,594 1,409,108
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of the year (1,014,248) (976,148) (1,006,746) (968,648)
Depreciation charge {153,546) (112,317) {183,548) (119,317)
Disposals 20,439 81,219 20,438 81,219
At end of the year (1,147,353} (1,014,246 {1,139,853) {1,006,746)
Closing net book value 182,008 402,362 167,741 402,362
Total net book value of property, plant
and equipment 419,466 587,965 373,582 585,627
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Purchased computer software

Cost

At beginning of the year
Additions

Dispasals

Al end of the year
Accumulated amaortisation
At beginning of the year
Ameriisation charge
Disposals

At end of the year
Closing net book value

Internally deveiopment Software

Cost

At beginning of the year
Addifions

At end of the year
Accumnulated amoitisation
At beginning of the year
Amortisation charge

At end of the year

Closing net bock value

Custiomer base assets
Cost

At beginning of the year

At end of the year
Accumulated emart/satlon
At beginning of the year
Amortisation charge

At end of the year

Closing net hook value

Total intangible assets

AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
] $ 3 $
2,315,798 2,219,706 2,315,795 2,218,706
328 ,83¢ 89,885 298,839 95,885
- (3,793) - (3,793)
2,544,637 2,315,758 2,644,637 2,315,708
{2,081,072) {1,058,299) (2,091,072) {1,858,299)
(141,740) (134,923) {141,740) {134,923)
- 2,150 - 2,150
(2,232,812) {2,091,072) (2,232,812) (2,081,072)
311,825 224,726 311,825 224,726
4,680,181 2,661,937 4 680,181 2,681,937
227,505 1,998,244 227,505 1,998,244
4,807,686 4,680,181 4,907,686 4,660,181
(889,830) (474,514) (889,830) (474,514)
(895,377} {415,316) (895,377) (415,316}
{1,785.207) {389,830) (1,785,207} (889,830)
3,122,479 3,790,351 3,122,479 3,790,351
76,816 76,818 - -
76,816 76,816 - =
(51,206) {25,605} - -
{25810) {25,601) - -
(76,816) {51,208} - -
- 25,810 - -
3,434,304 4,040,687 3,434,304 4,015,077
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AlA international Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

14. PROVISIONS

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
5 $ 8 $

Employee benefits 2,272,451 2,329,384 2,272,451 2,329,384
Restructuring - 251,186 - 261,186
Total provisions 2,272 451 2,590,570 2,272,451 2,590,670
Analysed as:
Current 1,831,146 2,390,517 1,931,146 2,390,517
Non current 341,305 200,053 341,306 200,053

2,272,451 2,590,570 2,272,451 2,530,570

Movement in Provisions
Movements in each class of provision other than employee benefits during the financial year are set out below:

Provision for restructuring

At beginning of the year 281,186 517,058 261,186 517,058

Additional provisions - 707,344 - 707,344

Used during the year (251,186) (953,216) (261,188) (963,216}
At the end of the year - - 261,186 - 261,186

Analysed as:

Currant - 261,186 - 261,186

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Amounts due to relnsurars 10,059,785 5,357 130 10,959,785 5,357,130

Other payables and accruals 2,954,841 2,664,211 2,912,911 2,614,468

Total trade and other payables 13,914,626 8,021,341 13,872,696 7,971,596

Anazlysed as:

Current 13,914,626 8,021,341 13,872,695 7,971,596
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AlA Infernational Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

16. SHARE BASED CONMPENSATION

Stock compensation plans

During the year, the AIA Group made further grants of share options (80) and restricied share units {RSU) to certain
employees, directors and officers of the Branch and consolidated entity under the SO Scheme, the RSU Scheme and
the Employes Share Purchase Plan (ESPP).

RSU Scheme

Under the RSU Scheme, the vesting of the granted RSUs is conditional upan the eligible participants remaining in
employment with the AIA Group during the respective vesting perjods. RSU granis are vested elther entirely after a
specific period of time ar in tranches over the vesting period. |f the RSU grants are vested in tranches, each vesting
tranche is accounted for as a separate grant for the purposes of recognising the expense over the vesting peried. For
certain RSUs, performance conditions are also attached which include both market and non-market conditions. RSUs
subject to performance conditions are released to the employees af the end of vesting period depending on the actual
achievement of the performance conditions, During the vesting period, the eligible parficipants are not entitled to
dividends of the underlying shares. The maximum number of shares that can be granted under this scheme is
301,100,000 representing 2.5 per cent of the number of shares in issue of AIAGL at 30 November 2013.

Year anded Year ended

30 November 2013 30 November 2012

Number of Shares Number of Shares
Resfricted share units
Quistanding at beginning of financial year 221,010 106,896
Granted 128,753 133,084
Transfer inf{out) - 14,479
Forfeited or expired (42,583) {33.449)
QOutstanding at end of financial year 306,780 221,010

Share Option Scheme

The objectives of the SO Scheme are to align eligible participants’ interests with those of the AIAGL shareholders by
aliowing eligible participants to share in the value created at the point they exercise their opfions. SO grants are
vested eithar entirely aiter a specific period of time or in franches over the vesting peried, during which, the eligible
participants are required to remain in employment with the AIA Group. If the SO grants are vested in franches, each
vesting tranche is accounted for as a separate grant for the purposes of recognising the expense over the vesting
period. The granted share options expire {en years from the date of grant. The total number of shares under opticns
that can be granted under the scheme is 301,100,000, representing 2.5 per cent of the number of shares in issue of
AIAGL at 30 November 2013.

Information about options outstanding and options exercisable by the Branch and consclidated entity’s employees
and directors as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Year ended Weighte d Year ended Weighted

30 November 2013 average 30 Novembar 2012 average

Number of share Number of share

aptions Exercise price options Exercise price

HKS HKS

Share Options
Quislanding at beginning of financial year 60,987 27.87 30,980 27.35
Granted 33,033 34.35 30,027 28.40
Exercised - - » -
Qutstanding at end of financial year 94,020 30.14 60,987 27.87
Share optiona axercisable at end of financisl yesr - - - -
Weighted average remaining contractual life (ysars) 8.38 8.82

28

pwe



AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

16. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

Employee Share Purchase Plan

Under the plan, eligible employees of the AlA Group can purchase ordinary shares of AIAGL with qualified employee
contiibutions and AIAGL will award one matehing restricted stock purchase unit fo them at the end of the vesting
period for each iwo shares purchased ihrough the qualified employee coniributions (contribution shares),
Contribution shares are purchased from the open market. During the vesting period, the eligible employees must hold
the contribution shares purchased during the plan cycle and remain employed by the AIA Group. The level of
qualified employee contribution is limited to not more than 5% of the annual basic salary subject to a maximum. For
the year ended 30 Novemnber 2013, sligible employees of the Group paid NZD$125,627 (2012: $110,200) to purchase
21,789 ordinary shares (2012: 25,090 ordinary shares) of AIAGL.

Valuation methodology

The AlA Group utitises a binomial lattice model fo calculate the fair value of the share options grants, a Monte-Carlo
simulation model andfor discounted cash flow technique to calculate the fair value of the RSU and ESPP awards,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted. The price volatility is estimated on
the basis of implied volatility of the AIAGL's shares which Is based on an analysis of historical data since they are
traded in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and takes into cansideration the histarical volatility of pser companies.
The expected life of the options is derived from the output of the valuation model and is calculated based on an
analysis of expected exercise behavior of the AIA Group's employees. The estimate of market condition for
performance based RSUs is based an one-year historical data preceding the grant date.

Year ended 30 November 2013

Share optlons Restricted share units mp:uf:;;::t::é“k
Risk-free interest rate 1.26% 0.25%* 0.21% - 0,66%
Volatillty 30.00% 30.00% 26% - 30%
Dividend yield 1.10% 1.10% 1.10% - 1.20%
Exercise price (HKS) 34.35 NIA N/A
Qpfion life §in years) 160.60 NIA /A
Expacled life (in yeus) 7.41 N/A NIA
Weighted average fair valuz per option / unit al measurement data (HKS) 10.54 28,92 35,54

* Apglicable to RSU with markef conditions.

The weighted average share price for share aption valuation for grants made during the year ended 30 November
2013 is HK$34.35 (2012: HK$28.40).

Recognised compensation cost

The total recognised compensation cost (net of expected forfeitures) related to various share-based compensation
awards granted under the RSU Scheme, SO Scheme and ESPP for the year ended 30 November 2013 is $398,579
(2012 $224,247).
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AlA Internationai Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

17. OTHER INSURANCE LIABILITIES

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ $ 3 $

Qutstanding claims 4,008,224 5,550,779 4,008,224 5,850,779
Other provislons - 4,100,000 - 4,100,000
Premiums received in advance and others 287,424 442,466 287,424 442 466
Total other Insurance llabilitles 4,295 648 10,093,245 4,295,648 10,093,245
Analysed as:

Current 4,295,648 10,093,245 4,285,648 10,093,245

In 2012 the Branch had a provisicn of $4,100,000 in relation to a block of business which lapsed in the previous year,
whereby the Branch was liable for benefit payments. During the current reporting pertiod, the provision was released
against claims expenses reducing the total claims expenses by $4,100,000 and the Fability has been taken up as part
of the policyholder liabilities through the movement in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Branch and consolidated entity operate risk management policies in accordance with Group policies and
procedures.

The financial condition and operating results of the Branch and consolidated entity are affected by a variety of key
financial and non-financial risks. Financial risks include market risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The non-financial risks are cperational risk, life insurance risk and compliance risk.

Risk management ohjectives and approach

Various procedures are in place to control and mitigate the risks faced by the Branch and consolidated entity
depending on the nature of the risk. The Branch and consclidated entity's approach to risk management involves the
identification of risks by type, impact and likelihaod, implementation of processes and controls to mitigate risks, and
continuous menitoring and improvement of the procedures in place to minimise the chance of an adverse event
occurring.

The Branch and consolidated entity do not enter into or trade financial instruments including derivative financial
instruments for speculaiive purposes.

Financial risks

The Branch and consolidated entity hold the foliowing categories of financial instruments:
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

18.

Consolidated
As at 30 November 2013

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Fixed interest securities
Total financial assets

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Qutstanding claims provision

Other financizl fabiities

Palicy haolder liabilities - Investment contracts
Total financial liabilities

As at 30 November 2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Fixed interest securities
Total financial assets

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Outstanding claims and other provisions
Other financial liabilities

Pollcy holder liahilities - Investment contracts

Total financial liabilities

Designated at

RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

fair value Financial
Loans and through profit liahilities at
receivables or loss amortised cost Total
§ $ $ $
19,278,123 - - 19,278,123
11,393,617 - - 11,383,617
- 181,583,983 - 161,583,983
30,671,740 161,583,983 . 192,265,723
- - 13,914,626 13,814,626
- - 4,008,224 4,008,224
- - 147,384 147,394
- 3,965,838 - 3,965,838
- 3,965,638 18,070,244 22,036,082
Designated at  Financial
fair value liabilities at
Loans and through profit amortised
receivables orloss cost Total
$ $ $ $
19,060,568 - - 18,060,568
12,021,855 - - 12,021,855
- 159,526,248 - 159,526,248
31,082,423 159,526,248 - 190,608,671
- - 8,021,341 8,021,341
- - 9,650,779 9,680,779
- - 208,849 206,649
- 4,338,934 - 4,338,934
- 4,338,934 17,878,769 22,217,703
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

18. RISK MANAGEWENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Branch
As at 30 Novembher 2013
Designated at
fair value Finaneial
Loans and through profit  liabilities at
receivables or loss amortised cost Total
5 $ 3 $
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,572,947 - - 18,572,847
Loans and receivables 11,772,272 - - 11,772,272
Fixed interest securities - 161,583,083 - 161,583,383
Total financial assets 30,345,219 161,583,983 - 191,829,202
Liabilities
Trade and other payzables - - 13,872,696 13,872,696
QOutstanding claims provision - - 4,008,224 4,008,224
Other financial liabilities - - 172,448 172,448
Palicy holder liabilities - Investment contract: - 3,966,838 - 3,865,838
Total financial liabilities - 3,965,838 18,053,368 22,019,206
As at 30 November 2012
Designated at
fair value Financiat
Loans and through profit  liabilities at
receivables orloss amortised cost Total
3 $ $ 3

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,358,308 - - 18,358,308
Loans and receivables 12,021,855 - - 12,021,855
Fixed interest securities - 159,526,248 - 158,528,248
Total financial assets 30,380,163 159,526,248 - 189,306,411
Liahilities
Trade and other payables - - 7,971,586 7,971,596
Outstanding clalms and other provisions - - 9,650,778 9,650,779
Amounts due to related parties - - 227,918 227,919
Policy holder liabilities - investment contract: - 4,338,034 - 4,338,934
Total financial liabilities - 4,338,934 17,850,294 22,185,228
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AlA international Limited - Mew Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in the falr value of financial instruments from fluctuations in the foreign exchange
rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk), whether such change in
price is caused by factors specific to an individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all finandial
instruments traded in a market.

Market risk is managed by the members of the AlA Australia Limited (AIA Australia) invesiment team who curently
handle the investment functicn of the Branch. Also there is an Investment Committee comprised of members of local
management, AlA Group Investments and the AIA Australia's Chief Invesiment Officer,

() Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity
analysis and cash flow forecasting.

The Branch’s and consolidated entity's exposure to foreign exchange risk arises primarily with respect to the
Australian dollar (AUD).

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from the cash flows related to the coupon payments of Annuity bonds
denominated in Australian dollars the Branch has reduced the exposure to these bonds and for the remaining
exposure will seek to enter into a cross currency swap with suifable counterparties once legal agreements are
finalised.

The Branch and consolidated entity’s foreign currency risk exposure at the reporting date was as follows:

2013 2012
AUS $ AUS 3

Annuity Bonds 4,444,342 4,518,222 4,417,680 5,604,143

Foreign currency sensifivity

Based on the financial instrumenis held at 30 November 2013, had the New Zealand dollar strengthened / weakened
by 5% against the AUD with all other variables held constant, the Branch and consofidated entity's profit after tax and
equity would have been $169,110 lower / $169,110 higher (2012: $201,749 lower / $201,749 higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gainsfosses on translation of AUD denominated finandial instruments as detailed in the
above table.

The Branch and consclidated antity’s exposure to other foreign exchange mavements is not material,

(i) Interest rafe risk
Interest-rate risk is the risk that the value or future value cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Changes in level of interest rates can have a significant impact on the Branch's and
consolidated entity overall investment return.

Interest rale risk sensitivity

The analyses below are based on changes in economic conditions that are considered reasonably possible at the
reporting date.

N

pwe



AlA Internaiional Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Sensitivity of floating inferest rate investments

At 30 November 2013, if interest had changed by -/+ 100 basis points from the year end rates with all other variables
held constant, profit after tax and equity for the year would have been $152,967 lower/higher (2012: $180,708
lowerfhigher) for the Branch and $157,538 lower/higher (2012: $187,5889 lower/higher) for the consolidated entify.
Sensitivity of fixed interest rate investmenls
At 30 November 2013, if interest rate had changed by -/+ 100 basis points from the year end rates with all other
variables held constant, the profit and loss and equity would have been § 3,990,106 higher/$ 3,771,469 lower (2012:
$3,687,926 higher/$3,507,806 lower) for the Branch and consclidated entity.
Interest rate risk sensitivity on policyholder liabilities is disclosed in note 21,

{(iif) Price risk

The Branch and consolidated entity’s exposure to price movements of financial assets and liabilities is not material.

(iv} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that in nermal market conditions the Branch and consolidated entity will be unable to liquidate
assets and therefore not have sufficient cash to meet and settle their debis (including expenses and policy payments)
as they fall due.

The Chief Investment Officer in Australia is responsible for ensuring any assels purchased or held can be turned to
cash within nomal market settlement times. The Chief Investment Officer monitors this risk primarily by fulure cash
forecast requirements. Liquidity risk is managed by holding a pool of readily iradable investment assets and deposils
&t call. This policy recognises that there may be extreme conditions where markets do not operate as nomal.

Maturity analysis

The table below summarises the financial [iabilities of the consolidated entity and the Branch into relevant maturity
groups based on the remaining pericd of balance date to contractual maturity date.

All amounts disclosed are contracted undiscounted cash flows that include interest payments and exclude the impact

of netiing agreements. The branch and consolidated entity did not have any financial liabilities with maturities between
1 and 5 years af balance date {2012: nil).

32

pwce



AJA Infernational Limited -~ New Zealand Branch

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3¢ NOVEMBER 2013

18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated
As at 30 November 2013

Weighted
average
interest rate % Under 1 year  Owver 5 years Total Carrying Value

Trade and other payables M/A 13,914,626 - 13,914,626 13,814,626
QOther insurance liabilities NiA 4,008,224 - 4,008,224 4,008,224
Other financial liabilities

- Amounts due to related parties NiA 147,394 - 147,384 147,394
Policyholder liahililies - Investment contracts §.81% - 6,665,623 6,665,523 3,965,838
Total financial liahilities 18,070,244 5,665,523 24,735,767 22,036,082
As at 30 November 2012
Trade and other payables NfA 8,021,341 - 8,021,341 8,021,341
Other insurance liabilities NfA 9,650,779 - 9,650,779 9,650,779
Other financial liabilities

- Amounts due to refated parties NJA 206,649 - 206,649 206,849
Policyholder liabilities - Investment confracts 5,95% - 6,482,011 8,482,011 4,338,034
Total financial liabiiities 17,878,769 6,482,011 24,360,780 22,217,703
Branch
As at 30 November 2013
Trade and other payables /A 13,872,696 - 13,872,695 13,872,696
Other insurance liabilities N/A 4,008,224 - 4,008,224 4,008,224
Cther financial liabilities

- Amounts due to related parties N/A 172,448 - 172,448 172.448
Policyholder liabilities - Investment contracts 5.61% - €,665,623 8,665,523 3,965,838
Total financial liabilities 18,053,368 6,665,523 24,718,891 22,019,206
As at 30 Novemher 2012
Trade and cther payables N/A 7,971,596 - 7,971,595 7,971,598
Other insurance liabllities NIA 9,650,779 - 0,650,779 8,650,779
Other financial liabilities

- Amounts due to refated parties N/A 227.919 - 227 919 227,919
Policyholder liabilities - Investment contracts 5.95% - 5,482,011 6,482,011 4,338,934
Total financial liabilities 17,850,294 5,482,011 24,332,305 22,185,228

N/A - non-interest bearing

Credit risk

Credit risk which tha Branch and consolidated entity have exposure to is the risk of default by borrowers and

transactional counterparties as well as the loss of value of assets due to deterioration in credit quality.

Key areas where the Branch and consolidated entity are exposed to credit risk are:

-~  Cash and cash equivalents;

- Counterparty risk with respect fo debt securities;

- Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;

- Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already palid;
- Amounts due from insurance contract holders:

- Amounts due from insurance infermediaries; and

- Lecans and receivables.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUEDR)

The maximum exposures to credit risks for the above assets are thelr carrying values.

Exposure to credit risk is managed by placing cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions
onty. Investments are also placed with high quality institutions, Counterparties are assessed for credit worthiness
before credit is granted.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk, This does not, howeaver, discharge the Branch's liability as primary
insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Branch remains liable for the payment to the policyholder,

The menitoring of the credit worthiness of reinsurers is centralised with the Group Enterprise Risk Management of AlA
in Hong Kong, whe performs this function for all companies within the Group. Every new treaty and amandment
requires sign-off by the Group Enterprise Risk Management, except for treaties with pre-approved reinsurers and with
2 volume within stated limits set by Group Enterprise Risk Management. The Group Enterprise Risk Managemeant will
ask for additional security in case they are not satisfied with the status of a reinsurer, and will update the companies
within the Group in case of deleriorafion of an existing reinsurer's status.

Financial assets of the Branch and consclidated entity are analysed in the table below using Standard & Poor's (S&P)
rating {or equivalent when not available from S&P).

Consclidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ $ $ b4
AA 128,287,308 134,766,615 127,572,016 134 064,355
A 29,623,277 51,821,448 29,623,277 31,821,448
BBB 23,221,785 18,266,689 23,221,795 18,285,669
Nan- Rated 11,123,343 5723 919 11,612,114 5723919
Total Financial Assets 192,255,723 180,608,671 191,929,202 189,906,411

Fair value estimation

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial linbilitics recorded in the financial
statements approximates their fair values. The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilifes with standard tetms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; and

~  the fair value of other financial assets and liabilities excluding derivative financial instruments {refer ta note
2.4 (o)) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and direct quotes from similar instruments.
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Branch and consolidated entity assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 30
November 2013.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 30 November 2013

Assets
Fixed inlerest securities
Total assets at fair value

Liabilities

Policyholder liabilities - Investment ¢ontracts
Total liabilities at fair value

As at 30 November 2012

Assets

Fixed interest securities
Total assets at fair value

Liabilities

Policyholder liabitities - Investment contracis

Total llabllities at fair value

Level 2 Level 3 Total
5 § §

161,583,983 - 161,583,983
161,583,983 - 161,583,983
- 3,965,838 3,965,838
- 3,965,838 3,965,838

Level 2 Level3 Total

$ S $

159 526 248 - 159,526,248
150,526,248 - 159,526,248
- 4,338,034 4,338,934
- 4,338,934 4,338,934

Investments classified as level 1 are made of shares in listed companies. The fair value of these investments is based
on quoted prices in active markets. The NZ Group did not have any level 1 investment assets at balance date. (2012:

nif).

Investments classified as level 2 are made of debt secuiities (bonds) and represents 100% of total assets at fair
value, The fair value of these investments are based on inputs other than quoted prices included in leve! 1 that are
observable for the asset either directly {ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie derived frem prices). Observable inputs
generally used to measure the fair value of securities classified at level 2 are broker-dealer quotes.

Folicyholder liabilities related to investment contracts are classified as fair value level 3. These contracts are not
queted in active marksts and their fair value is determined as net present value of future estimated cash flows and

invelves the following unobservable assumptions and inputs.

Surrender rate
Year 1-5

Year 6-10
Year 11-15
Year 16-20
Year 21-25

Mirimum credit rate
Discount rate (gross)
Discount rate (net)

7.00%
10.00%
12.50%
15.00%
17.50%

6.00%

5.48%

3.95%

The crediting rate reflects the guaranteed return of 6% on the majority of these investment contracts.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table represents the changes in level 3 instruments:

Palicyholder Eabilities- Policy holder liabilities-

Variation Investmeantcormtracts Inve stment contracts
2013 2012
5 $

Opening balance: 4,338,934 4.012,264
Loss recegnised in incoma statament {505,342 328,076
Inwestmentincome net of tax and expen ses: 179,258 €9,826
Contrikutlens received 84,087 80,741
With drawals (131,109) (151,873)
Closing balance: 3,965,838 4,338,934

The following table shows the sensitivity of level 3 measurement to reascnably possible faverable or unfavorable
changes in the assumptions used to determine the fair value of policyholder Eabilities — investment contracts as at 30
November 2013.

Profit and equity increase  Profit and equity increase

Variation I {decrease) { (decrease)
2013 2012
$ $
Interest rates + 1% 320,000 370,000
Interest rates - 1% {360,000) {420,000)
Surrenders + 10% 60,000 100,000
Surrenders - 10% {70,000) (120,000)

Capital management

The Branch manages ifs capital to ensure that the Branch and NZ Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the refurn fo Head Office. The Branch’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012,

The capital structure of the Branch and consolidated entity consists of equity attributable {o equity holders, comprising
mainly Head Office account and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 23 and 25 respectively. During the current
year the Consolidated Entity complied with all externally imposed capital requirements.

On 31 August 2013 the Branch and consolidated entity have established a statutory fund (‘the Statutory Fund') in
accordance with the requirements of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010, The assets and liabilities of the

consolidated entity that solely relate to the life insurance business were allocated to the Statutery Fund upon
inception, Further discussion in regards to the Statutory Fund is included in note 31,

The solvency capital of the Branch and the Statufory Fund are presented below.

As at 30 November 2013

Non-
Statutory
(Calculated in accordance with RBNZ requirements) Branch Statutory Fund Fund
$ 5 $
Actual solvency capital 106,492,233 80,937,432 15,654,801
Minimum solvency capital 68.094,710 53,461,391 14,633,319
Solvency Margin 38,397,523 37,476,041 921,482
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18, RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 30 November 2012
(Caleulated in accordance with RENZ requirements) Branch

$
Actual salvency cagital 85,220,075
Minimum solvency capital 35,514,443
Solvency Margin 49,714,632

The basis of calculation of the solvency reserves for 2013 and comparative follows the requirements set out in the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand 'Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business', with the provision thal some minor
lines of ex-Alico business have been valued on the Hong Kong statutory net premium basis.

Non financial risk
Insurance risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

The principal risk that the Branch faces under its insurance contracis is that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities.

Insurance risks are controiled through the use of underwriting procedures, adequate premium rates and sufficient
reinsurance arrangements, all of which are approved jointly at the Branch and Regional office levels. Tight controls
are also maintained over claims management practices fo ensure the correct and timely payment of insurance claims.

Concentration of insurance risk

Concentraticn of insurance risk arises due to:

- Large sum assured on certain individuals: The concentration of individual lump sum risk is limited as the
Branch’s retentlon under the treaties with reinsurers is either a fixed amount, or a percentage of the sum
assured subject to a fixed amount. In addition, excessive concentration can be detected and prevented at
underwriting stage.

~  Geographic concentrations due to employee group schemes; This rigk is primarily covered by a catastrophe
reinsurance treaty with AlA Company Limited which provides cover losses in excess of US$500,000, up to a
maximum of US$20 million in case of a catastrophe as defined in the freaty. Additional cover is provided by
another catastrophe reinsurance treaty between the AIA group of companies and external reinsurers.

Terms and conditions of insurance ¢contracts
The nature and the ferms of insurance contracts written by the Branch is such that certain external variables can be

identified on which related cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the key
variables upon which the amount of the related cash flows are dependent.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Type of contract

Details of contract
workings

Nature of compensation
for claims

Key variables that affect

the timing and uncertainty
of future cash flows

Non-participating life
insurance contracts with
fixed terms {Term Life
and Disability including
renewable risk)

Benefits paid on death or
ill heatth that are fixed
and not at the discretion
of the issuer

Benefits, defined by the
insurance coniract and are
not directly affected by the
performance of the
underlying assets or the
performance of the contracts
as awhole

Rates of mortality and

morbidity, discontinuance

rates and expenses

Operational and regulatory compliance risk

Operational risk is the potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal pracesses, pzople, and systems or

from external events.

Regulatory compliance risk is the risk relating to legal or regulatory sanctions, financial loss or damage 1o reputation
and franchise value arising from the failure to comply with laws and regulations.

The Branch's objective is to satisfactorily manage operational risk and regulatory compliance risk. Various procedures
and mechanisms are put in place lo identify, control and mitigate the risks faced by the Branch depending on the
nature of the risk. Both operational risk and regulatory compliance risks are closely monitored by the Compliance,
Enterprise Risk Management and Legal functions and are regularly reporied o the Leadership Team and Group

Office in Hong Kong.

19. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Ameunts duo to rolated parties

Subsidtary

Qther related parties
AlA Company Limited

AlA Information Technalogy (Guangzhou) Go. Limited

Analysad as:
Current

20. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Cansolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
k3 5 L] %
AlA Finandal Services Network Limited - - 25054 21,270
83,428 203,723 83426 203,723
63 4958 2,925 53,968 2,926
147,394 206,649 172,448 227,919
147,394 206,649 172,448 227,919

AlA New Zealand predominantly operates in one operating segment, life insurance. The health insurance and
brokerage business segments are not significant and have not been disclosed separately. The consolidated entity and
the branch operate in one geographical segment, New Zealand.
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21. ACTUARIAL POLICIES AND METHODS

The actuarial report on policyholder liabilities and solvency reserves for the current reporting period was prepared as
at 30 November 2013. The actuary who prepared the report for the Branch was Peter Davies B.Bus Sc., FIA, and
FNZSA. The value of policyholder liabilities has been determined in accordance with Professional Standard 3 of the
New Zealand Society of Actuaries. After making appropriate checks, the actuary was satisfied as to the accuracy of
the data from which the amount of policyholder lizbilities has been determined.

The valuation methodology and assumptions are as follows:
Valuation methods and profit carriers

The policies were divided into major product groups with profit carriers as follows:

Major Product Groups Carrier Valuation method

Lump sum adviser products:-
Parmanent Term, Express Life,
Permanent Life, Yearly renewable
term, Total and Permanent
Disablement, Vital Care (Trauma)

Claims net of reinsurance Mode! office projection

Income protection products-
(Disability income, Business
Continuation cover, New to Business
Cover, Key Person Bengefit)

Claims net of reinsurance Model office projection

Direct response guaranteed issue
whole of life non parficipating cover

Claims net of reinsurance Model office projection

Medical insurance products Claims net of reinsurance Model office projection

Golden Life

Interim and final maturity payments

Model office projection

Ex Alico term insurance, consumer
credit, mortgage protection

Accumulation method

Model office projection on pro-raja
basis

Disability income claims in payment
and claims incurred but not reported

Valuation assumptions

Not applicable

Discounted value of expected future
claim payments, applying termination
assumptions to current open and
pending claims based on published
tables of disability terminations,
adjusted in line with company
experience based on a yearly review.

Future cash-flows are discounted using the expected rate of return on risk-free investments over the duration of the
insurance contracts, and realistic estimates of future expense, cancellation / surrender and morality experience. The
assumptions used are set out in the table below:
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21. ACTUARIAL POLICIES AND METHODS (CONTINUED}

Permanent Term, Express

Life, Permanent Life and
Golden Life

Renewable Risk

Disabled lives

Discount rate (before
tax)

Discount rate based on:

5.48%
{2012: 4.14%)

Swap rates (2012: Swap
rates)

5.34%
(2012: 3.99%)

Swap rates (2012; Swap
rates)

4.88%
(2012: 3.51%)

Swap rates (2012; Swap
rates)

Other assumptions

Permanent Term, Express

Life, Permanent Life and
Golden Life

Renswabie Risk

Ex Alico term insurance,
consumer credit,
mortgage protection

Martality

Mortality improvement

Iniial expense
allowance
{before tax)

Renewal expenses

(before tax)

Cover escalation

Lapses / surrenders

Tax rate

Inflation rate

75% of NZC4
{2012: 75% of NZ 04)

Nil

124% of new Annualised
Premium Income (AP}
{2012: 145%)

$415 p.a., escalating at
2.5% p.a.

{2012: $320 p.a., escalating

at 2.5% p.a.)

2%p.a.
(2012: 2% p.a.)

Based on experience
analysis, varying befween

11% and 1% depending on

duration, 75% at full

payback (Pemmanent Term)

{2012: 11% and 1%, 75%)
28% (2012: 28%)

2.5% (2012 2.5%)

84% of NZ04 for non-
smokers, 128% for
smokers, with inifial
selection benefits. (2012:
64%, 128%)

Nil
124% of new Annualised

Premium Income {API)
(2012: 145%)

$415 p.a,, escalating at 2%

p.a
at 2% p.a.)

1.16% to 2% pa
(2012: 1.16% fo 2% p.a.)

Based on experience
analysis, varying between

9% and 17% depending on

duration {(2012: 8% and
17%)

28% (2012 28%)

2.0% (2012: 2%}

(20'12: $320 p.a,, escalating

115% of NZ 04 (2012
115%)

Nit

Nil

Nil

il

Nil

NIl
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21. ACTUARIAL POLICIES AND METHODS (CONTINUED)

There have been no changes in valuation assumptions used from the pravious year unless explicitly stafed

Impact of changes in assumptions

2013 2012
Profitmamin Polloyllabiliy ' oM & Profit margh Pofiey Profit &
eq uity Liabillty equity
Increas e/ increasef increase/
o d increase/ d increase/ increases
{deore ase) (deereass} o 0 e e) (decrease) (decraase) (decrease)
$ $ 3 3 s 3

Interest rate change - movement In
markg rates {9,774 ,480) (21,002,857) 21,002,957 2,083,001 12,811,326 (12,811,526)
Renewalcost assumptim {16,897 ,529) 10 6,083 {108,083) (3,123,580) - -
Total (26,472,019) {20,895,874) 20,898,874 {1,060,579) 12,814,526 (12,811,526)

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is conducted to quantify the exposure to risk from changes in the underiying variables

2013 2012
POlcy HabIlty o ofitinoroaser  FONCY BaBltY o increaser
Increase! (decrease) increasel (decrease)
{decrease) {decrease)
§ 5 3 $

Base

Interest rates + 1% per annum {12,500,000) 12,500,000 {18,100,000) 18,100,000
Interest rates - 1% per annum 15,500,000 (15,500,00¢) 24,000,000 (24,000,000}
InRation + 1% per annum 1,700,000 {%,700,000) 10,500,000 {10,500,000)
Inflation ~ 1% per annum (1.400,000) 1,400,000 {5,500,000) 5,500,000
Termination rates of open disibility income claims increased by 10% (800,000) 200,000 (800,000) 800,300
Tarmination rates of open dislhility income ¢isims decreased by 10% 200,000 (B00,008) B00,000 (800,000}
Total 3,400,000 {3,400,000) 10,500,000 (10,900,000}

Maturity analysis of insurance contracts

The table below shows the undiscounted cash flows from the embedded value model of the Branch. Cash inflows are

composed of premiums and investment earnings. Cash cutflows are composed of claims, commissions, expenses

and net reinsurance costs.

From 2013 year end valuation

Cash inflows
Cash outflows

From 2012 year end valuation

Cash inflows
Cash outflows

Under 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yaars 3-4 years 4-5years  Over 5 years
Fm $m ¥m $'m ¥m £m

38.5 82.8 782 74.1 71.0 1,248.2

{81.1) 78.2) {71.9) (72.8) (65.3) {1,153.8)

Under 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 34 years 4-5years  Qver Syears
$m $'m $m $m $m $m

101 94,2 88.4 84.9 802 1,161.70

(84.8) (78.6) {76.4) {70.0) (69.6) £1,030.5)
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22. POLICYHOLDER LIABILITIES (ASSETS)

Conscldated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ S S 3
Opening gross pollegyholdar lahilikies 83,630,700 680,450,253 83,630,700 60,450,293
Movement Jnpalicyholder liabiifes - lrsurance
contracts {13,328,928) 16,230,707 {13,328,228) 16,230,707
Movement inpolicyhokier liablifes - Irvestment
contracts {325,082) 397,902 (326,082) 387,902
Movement throughincome staement 13,655,019} 16,628609 {13,655,010) 16,628,609
Universal life premlums recelved 84,097 80,741 84,057 80,741
Universal life paymens te pdicyholders (131,108) (151,973 (131,109) (151,973
Movemeant in deferred tax (4,591.272) 5623030 {4.591.272) 6,623,030
Closing gross pollcyholder labitities 65,337,406 83,630700 65,337,408 83,630,700
Closingpolicyhdder labiktles cortain the foliowing components:
Insurance contracrs
Future premiums (536,160,028)  (552,021,133) (535,160,028) (652,021,133
Future policy benefits 343,948,426 36G85,295306 343,948,426 365,285,306
Future expenses 193,670,707 191,158667 193,870,707 191,158,667
Planned margin 57,555,958 72,307,091 57,555,956 72,307,091
Renewable risk deferred acquisitlon costs - 39,641 - 39,541
Other ex-Allca bendits 2,356,507 2,512,194 2,356,507 2.512,184
Insurance contract liabilitias &1,3H.,568 79,291,788 61,371,568 78,291,766
Investment contracts
Future policy benefits 3,065,838 4,338934 3,965,838 4,338,934
Investm ent confract liabilkies 3,865,838 4,338934 3,965,838 4,338,934
Total gross paolicyhold er lrahilities 656,337,408 83,630,700 65,337,406 83,630,700
Assets | (liabllitles) arising from reinsurance contracts
Ralance at 1 December (16,573,318) {22 8R5867) (18,533.318) {22.855,867)
Movement through income staement 19,185,735 6,332,549 19,185,735 6,332,549
Balan ce at 30 Novom ber 2,652,417 16,533,318) 2,682,417 {16533,218)
Defermed tax (46,190,489) (50,781,761) (4&,190,489) (50,781,761
Total net policyh oldor liabilties 21,799,334 16,315621 21,799,334 16316,621
Analysed as:
Current (3,685,549) (8,091,811) (3,685,549) (8,091,819
Non current 25,484,883 24,407,432 @_,484,833 24,407,432
21,799,334 16,315621 21,759,334 16,315,621
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23. HEAD OFFICE ACCOUNT

Consolidated : Branch
2013 012 2013 2012
$ 3 $ $

Head office account

Opening balance at 1 December 91,700,724 86,664,636 81,700,724 86,664,636
New contributions - 15,000,00¢ - 15,000,000
Net profit/ (loss) for the year - Branch 23,820,137 (5,963,912} 23,820,137 {9,563,912)
Closing balance at 30 November 115,520,861 91,700,724 115,520,861 9,700,724

The head offlce account is interest free and repayable at the discretion of the head office subject to the requirements
of statutory fund legislation.

24, SHARE CAPITAL (CONSOLIDATED)

Share capital

Opening balance at 1 December 86,500 86,500 - -
New issues/{cancellations) - - - -
Closing balance at 30 November 86,500 86,500 - -

Share capital is represented by 10 ordinary shares of AIA FSN issued and fully paid. All ordinary shares rank sgually
with one vote attached to each fully paid share. Ordinary shares have no par value,

25, RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained earnings

Opening balance at 1 December 618,058 587315 - -
Net (loss) /profit for the year - excluding Branch (252,848) 28,743 - -
Closing batance at 30 November 363110 616,058 - -

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and n hand 6,800,784 5,300,670 6,653,247 5,287 528
Daposis at call 12477339 13,759,898 11,918,700 13,070,780
Total cash and cash aquivalents 19,278,123 19,080,568 18,572,847 18,368,308
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AlA Infernational Limited - New Zealand Branch

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

26, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

{a) Reconciliation to cash attheend of the year

The abowe fgums are reconciled to cash at the end of thafinancial year as shown inthe Stalements of Cash Flows s folows:

Consoldated Branch
2013 a2 2013 202
5 $ 3 3
Balancs as above 18,278,123 19,060,568 18,572,047 18,358,308
Closing balanseperStafem ents of Cash Flows 19,278,123 19,050,568 18,572,947 18,358,308

{b) Reconciliation of profit/ (bss) after taxation to net cash inflow from operating activitlas

Profit/ {loss) after taxatian for theyear 23,567,189 {9,935,169) 23,820,137 {9,953,912)
Add f{less) non cash items

Depreciation 235,006 239,841 2324627 239,164
Am atsaton of ntanghles 1,052,727 575,840 1,037.117 550,239
Cther movements 51,050 31,777 63,340 5970
Gains/(lbsses) from finandal assets 7,234 820 {4,386 461) 7,284,829 (4.%66,461)
Movement in policyholder liabiilizs and reinsurance assets {13,702,022) 16,567,317 (13,702022) 16,557,377
Defemed and curren tax provision (6,905,109) 6,007,6M (6,307,369} 6,012,344

(11,383,519} 19,046,185 (11,411,508) 18,908,633

Add I {lass) movements [n working capita relating to operating activitks

(Inerease) / deereasa inlaans and raceivables 44,658 2,775,142 280412 22377554
(Increase) / dearease inincome tax assels (2,445,380) (25,805) (2,351,545) -
({Decrease) / ncrease in rade and other payables 5,893,285 {2.5¢4,474) 5,901,100 {2,512,756)
Increasa /{decrease) in provisims {318,119} {109,153) (318,119) {M8,163)
Increase / {decrease) in other insurence liablities {5,797,597) {2,904,054) (5,797,597) (2,504,054)
Increase /{decrease) in other financial liabililies (59,267) {45,323) {55471) (43,917)
{2,057,420) (3,563,677} {2,331,220) (3,492,336}
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,126,250 5,567,348 10,077,409 5,542,385
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

27. DISAGGREGATED INFORMATION

As at 30 November 2013

Investment assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Other assets

Pdlicyholder liabilities
Liahiliies other than policyholder liabilities
Retained profits attributable to head office

Premiurn revenue from insurance contracts
Outwards reinsurance expense

QOutward relnsurance commission income
Investment income

Fee and other income

Claims expense

Reinsurance recovery revenue

Other operating expenses

Maovement in policyholder liabilities

Profit befare taxation

Income tax expense [ (benefit)

Profit after taxation for the year

Investment linked

Non-~invastment

policles linked policies Branch total

$ $ $
3,966,638 14,607,109 18,572,947
- 185,550,980 185,550,880
3,965,838 200,158,089 204,123,927
3,965,838 17,833,456 21,799,334
- £6,803,732 66,803,732
- 115,520,881 115,520,851
3,865,838 200,158,089 204,123,927
- 100,088,497 100,088,497

(123) (44,606,975) {44,507,098)
- 8,075,000 8,075,000
249,143 3,752,881 4,002,024
- 15,363 15,383

- (44,319,966} {44,319,866)
- 22,870,040 22,870,040

- (42,366,072} {42,366,072)
326,082 13,328,928 13,655,010
875,102 16,937,696 17,512,798

69,760 (6,377,099) {6,307,339)
505,342 23,314,795 23,820,137
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AlA iInternational Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

27. DISAGGREGATED INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

As at 30 November 2012

Investment assets
Cash ard cash equivalents
Other assets

Policyholder liabilities
Liabilities other than policyholder liabilities
Retained profits aftributable to head office

Premium revenue from Insurance contracts
Outwards reinsurance expense
Qutwards reinsurance income
Investment income

Fee and other income

Claims expense

Reinsurance recovery revenue
Other operating expenses
Movement in policyholder liabilities
Loss before faxation

Income tax expense

Loss after taxation for the year

This note is required only for Life Insurance Operations under NZ IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’. Consequently, no

consolidated position is reguired.

Investment Non-investment
finked policies linked policies Branch Total
4,338,934 14,019,374 18,358,308
- 178,676,107 178,676,107
4,338,934 192,695,481 197,034,415
4,338,934 11,976,687 16,315,621
- 89,018,070 89,018,070
- 81,700,724 91,700,724
4,338,934 192,695,481 197,034,415
- 104,467,700 104,467,700
{324) {49,547,985) (49,548,309)
5,932,238 5,932,238
250,536 11,694,575 11,945,111
- 14,973 14,973
- {47,419,711) (47,419,711)
- 28,200,233 28,200,233
- {39,685,134) (39,685,134)
(397,802} {16,230,707) (16,628,609)
(147,690) (2,573,818} (2,721,508}
180,386 7,062,018 7,242 404
(328,076) (9,635,836) {9,963,912)

investment linked business fs business for which the insurer issues a contract where the benefit amount is directly
linked to the market value of the investments held in the particular investment linked fund. Non-investment linked
business is insurance business ofher than investment-linked business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

28. OWNERSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

a} Immediate and ultimate controlling party

AlA International Limited -New Zealand Branch (formerly American International Assurance Company (Bermuda}
Limited-New Zealand Branch) is a Branch of AlA International Limited {formery American international Assurance
Company (Bermuda) Limited), whose immediate holding company is AlA Company Limited {formerly known as
American International Assurance Company, Limited), whose ulimate holding company is AIAGL a company

incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Heng Kong Limited.

b) Transactions with retated parties

The Branch entered into fransactions with its related parties in the nermal course of business. The aggregate amount
of income and expenses arising from these transactions during the year with the related parties are as follows:

Consolidated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012

$ 8 $ $
Subsidiary of head office
Commissions - - 365,600 228,802
Reimbursement of various expenses and cther _ . _
paysables 370,447
Qtherrelated parties
Group service fees 662,705 1,214,765 662,705 1,214,765
Professlonal Fees 142,240 - 142,240 -
Employee stock purchase plan contribution 26,918 16,397 26,918 18,397
Other administrative fees 211,268 822,456 911,268 B22.,458

1,743,131 2,053,618 2,479,178 2,282,520
For balances with related parties refer to notes 19 and 9.

¢} Key Management personnel compensation
The compensation for key management personnel during the year was as follows:
Salaries and other shart term benefits 3,302,519 3,075,452 3,302,519 3,075,452
Post-employment benefits - 104,374 - 104,374
Terminations 36,000 60,836 30,000 60,836
3,332,519 3,240,682 3,332,519 3,240,662

Key management personnel are those persons having autharity and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the aciivities of the Branch and consolidated entity directly or indirectly.
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

29. OPERATING LEASES

Consoifdated Branch
2013 2012 2013 2012

& $ 3 $
Future operating non cancallable lease commitments on premises and assets [eased are as follows:

Pericd from balance date payable:

Not later than cne year 658,064 686,050 588,830 645,192
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,517,520 1,308,932 1,483,867 1,290,169
2,175,584 1,994,982 2,072,697 1,935,361

Operating lease payments represent the future rentals payable for premises and assets leased under current leases.
These lease agreements have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no material capital commitments at balance date (2012; nil).

31. STATUTORY FUND

From 1 July 2013 under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 ('IPSA™) AlA NZ is required ta have a
statutory fund. AlA NZ statutory fund, AlA International Holdings (New Zealand) Limited (‘the Statutory Fund®), was
established on 31 August 2013 and solely relates to the life insurance business of the NZ Group.

The purpose of the Statutory Fund is to ensure that the funds received and paid out in respect of life insurance
policies are separately identifiable as being part of the Statutory Fund. The Statutory Fund's assets have been
transferred to the fund on establishment and were determined in the way that is compliant with the minimum solvency
requirement of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

The use of the assets held in the Stafutory Fund $198,318,947 is restricted in accordance with the IPSA requirements
and can only be used to meet the liabilities and expenses of that fund; to acquire investments to further the business

of the Statutory Fund; or as distributions, provided that solvency, capital adequacy and cther regulatory requirements
are met,

Since its establishment the Statutory Fund generated $5,655,474 of profit. This financial result was determined using
a combinaticn of actual and apportioned income and expenditure. The income and expenditure which could not be

easily related e the life insurance business were allocated applying assumptions which gave consideration to the
historical experience and overall appropriateness of the allocation basis.

The profit of the Statutory Fund is aliocated to the Head Office account.

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no material contingent liabilities at balance date (2012: nil),
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AlA International Limited - New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2013

33. PRIOR PERIOD CORRECTION

There was a corection made to the comparative period relating o the change in the classification of financial assefs
from ‘Avaitable for Sale’ to At Fair Value through Profit or Loss' categary. The impact of this change is detailed below.

Impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The change in classification of financial assets has lead to the unrealised gains or [osses being recognised in the
prefit or loss for the period. As a result ‘'Net investment income' for 2012 increased by $2,098,157 and ‘Income tax
expense’ increased by $586,923. The net loss after tax for the 2012 financial year has decreased by $1,508,234.
There was no impact on the total comprehensive income for the year.

Impact on the Statement of Financial Position

There was an increase of $5,973,581 in the ‘Head Office Account’ balance. This amount was previously included in a
Reserves balance.

Impact on the Statement of Changes in Equity and Head Office Account

The 2012 opening balance of the Available for Sale Assets Reserve of $4,464,347 was transferred to the opening
balance of the Head Office Account. The movement of $1,500,234 for the year previously recognised in the Available
for Sale Reserve was fransferred to the rovement in the Head Office Account via loss for the period recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

34. EVENTS QCCURRING AFTER BALANCE DATE

There were no events occuring after balance date that required adjustment fo or disclosure in the financial
statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Directors of ATA International Limited — New Zealand Branch

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of ATIA International Limited- New Zealand Branch
(“the Branch”) on pages 1 to 49, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30
November 2013, the statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity
and head office account and the statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes
to the financial statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information for both the Branch and the Group. The Group comprises the New
Zealand Branch and the entities it controlled at 30 November 2013 or from time to time during
the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of
the matters to which they relate and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) and
International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider the internal controls relevant to the Branch and the Group’s preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch and the Group’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditors we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Branch
or the Group.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwe.com/nz.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AIA International Limited — New Zealand Branch

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 1 to 49:

{ comply with génera]ly accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
G comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

(i)  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Branch and Group as at
30 November 2013, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We also report in accordance with Sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act
1993. In relation to our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2013:

[§)] we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

(i) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Branch as far as
appears from an examination of those records.

Restriction on Use of our Report

This report is made solely to the Directors of the Branch, as a body. Our andit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Directors of the Branch those matters which we are
required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not aceept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Directors
of the Branch, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

funn Rl

Chartered Accountants Auckland
19 March 2014




To the Directors of AlA International Limited — New Zealand Branch
Appointed Actuary's Section 78 report

Review of actuarial information in, or used in the preparation of, financial statements

| am the Appointed Actuary of AIA International Limited — New Zealand Branch ("AlA New Zealand").

In regards to the financial statements my work as Appointed Actuary involved oversesing the preparation of data and
assumptions, reasonableness checks of modeled results and preparation of inputs for the financial statements.

AlA New Zealand relies on an actuarial model that is the proprietary knowledge of an external actuary; AIA New
Zealand provides the inputs of data and assumptions and performs review on the outputs.

The scope of the review was the actuarial inpuls to the financial statements, including the actuarial Notes to the
Accounts and preparation of the 2013 Financial Condition Report for AIA New Zealand.

No limitatiens have been placed on me during the review of actuarial information and all information and explanations
have been provided to prepare the actuarial information.

| am also employad as the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") of AlA New Zealand. | note that | hold publically listed
shares in the parent company of AlA International Limited. | hold approximately US$4,000 in a private capacity and a
number of shares via standard employee share schemes and incentive plans. Neither the fact that | am CFO nor my
shareholding altered my actuarial opinion in any way.

In my opinion, the actuarial information used in the preparation of the financial statements has been appropriately
used and the actuarial information contained in the financial statements has been appropriately included in those
statements.

In my opinjon, AIA New Zealand is and has been maintaining the required salvency margin.

P

Robert Hartnett

Appointed Actuary
Fellow of the New Zealand Sociely of Acluaries

18 ﬂ,[w,c& 2014
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